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Property Name (if any): Andrew and Rika Peterson House

Address: 341 Ontario Avenue

Date of Construction: ¢. 1900 City, County: Park City, Summit County, Utah
Architect/Builder, if known: unknown Tax Number: PC-451-A

Current Owner: Matthew Day

Legal Description (include acreage): PC 451 LOT 22 BLK 54 PARK CITY SURVEYIQC-534 M200-624 1571-469
1623-622; 0.04 AC

STATUS / USE

Original Use: single dwelling  Current Use: single dwelling

Property Type: National Register of Historic Places: Evaluation:

M Buiding [ Eiigible [JLandmark Site

[ Structure W cigible B significant Site
[1site [ Listed, Date: [L1Non Historic
DOCUMENTATION

Photographs: Research Sources:

[]Tax Photos | Sanborn Maps | City/ County Histories | Newspapers
W prints: [tax Card [1Personal Interviews []Other:

[ Historic B Census Records I park City Museum
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DESCRIPTION

Architectural Style: hall-parlor type

No. Stories: 1

Number of Associated Structures: []Accessory building(s). # [ Structure(s). #
Condition: I Good C1Fair [ Poor []Uninhabitable/Ruin
Location: | Original location ~ [L]Moved (Date: ,original location: )

Materials: (Describe the visible materials)

Exterior Walls: Drop siding

Foundation: Not verified

Roof: Gable roof form sheathed in asphalt shingles

Windows/Doors: Double-hung sash type flanking a center door--near symmetrically placed on primary fagade
Additions: [] Major [ Minor M None

Alterations: Il Major [IMinor [INone

Describe Additions/ Alterations (Dates):

Essential Historic Form: N Retains [[]Does Not Retain

NARRATIVE DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY

(Briefly describe the property and its setting. Include a verbal description of the location; a general description of
the property including the overall shape, number of stories, architectural style, materials, shape of roof; identify and
describe any associated structures; identify any known exterior additions and/or alterations.)

341 Ontario is a hall-parlor type house. The hall-parlor is one of the main three house types that were built during
the historic Park City mining era, and was the earliest of those three, occurring mostly in the beginning of that
period. The gable roof is sheathed with asphalt shingles, and has two small gable dormers placed symmetrically on
the front fagade and were built between 1940 and 1995. The house is sheathed with drop-novelty wood siding,
which appears to be original. The windows on the primary fagade are one-over-one double hung sash type and are
arranged symmetrically on either side of the door, which is centered on the primary facade. The door itself is a
frame and panel wood door that is different than the one shown in the c. 1940 photo. A small oriel window is on
the north fagade and was built sometime between 1940 and 1995. A full width porch is shown in the early tax
photos and on the Sanborn maps, but was slowly modified over time, shown later with simpler roof supports, and
finally, in the 2006 photo, removed altogether. The site is on a steep slope with the house being below the grade of
Ontario Avenue. A small shed extension exists on the north side of the building, but is currently boarded up.
Although the form remains legible, the cumulative formal and material changes have diminished its historic value.
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SIGNIFICANCE

Historic Era:
[[]Settlement & Mining Boom Era (1868-1893)
W \viature Mining Era (1894-1930)

[L]Mining Decline & Emergence of Recreation Industry (1931-1962)

Narrative Statement of Significance:

(Briefly describe those characteristics by which this property may be considered historically significant.)

This house was built between 1900 and 1907, judging from the Sanborn Insurance maps from those years. Other
structures existed in this area previously, shown on the 1889 Sanborn map, but many of them were gone at the
time of the 1900 map. It is possible that many of the buildings in this area were destroyed in the fire of 1898. There
were two owners of the property from 1900 to 1907, and it is unknown which of them owned the property at the
time this house was constructed.

Jennet Decker owned the property from 1888 to 1902, and Andrew and Rika Peterson from 1902 to 1911.

No information could be found on Jennet Decker. Rika Peterson appears on the 1910 census, living on Ontario
Ridge (which may have been what this section of Ontario Avenue was called at this time), with her two sons. She
was born in Sweden, and immigrated to the U.S. in 1889. The census indicates that she was widowed at this time,
and it is assumed that Andrew was her husband, though this is unconfirmed. The house was sold in 1911 to Carl
Nilson.

No Carl Nilson exists on any census for Park City, and it is unknown if he ever lived in this house, as no census
occurred during the period of his ownership. It is possible that he may have rented out the house. The next owner
of the house was Ida Carlson, who obtained it in 1915. She also did not own the house during the time of a census,
with her period of ownership ending in 1917, thus it is unknown if she lived in or rented out the house. The next
owner was F.J. McLaughlin.

Frank J. McLaughlin appears on the 1920 census, likely in this house, though his address was not recorded on
that census. He worked as a postmaster for Park City at that time, and lived in the house with his daughter
Gertrude. Prior to becoming postmaster, he had owned his own general store. He sold the house in 1923 to Emma
Johnson, and moved away from Park City in 1925.

Emma Johnson appears on the 1930 census for Park City, living on Marsac Avenue with her husband Ancil. It
seems they used the house as an income property, as it was being rented at the time of that census by John and

Lottie Wallenzian. No information could be found on them. The house was sold to Louis Lindstrom in 1937.

Louis Lindstrom (or Linstrom) occupied this house during the 1940 census, with his wife Florence and their
daughter Mary Lou. He was born in Park City, and worked as a miner for the Silver King Coalition mine. He died in

Planning Department/ Park City Corporation



4
1950, after several months of iliness. The house has changed hands several times since that time, and is currently

owned by Matthew Day.
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PHOTOS

(Provide several clear historical and current photos of the property as well as locational maps indicating the
location of the property in relation to streets or other widely recognized features.)

341 Ontario Avenue, Park City, Summit County, Utah

Intensive Level Survey—Biographical and Historical Research Matenials
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341 Ontario Avenue, Park City, Summit County, Utah
Intensive Level Survey—Sanborn Map history
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241 Onfario Avenue, Park City, Summit County, Utah
Intensive Level Survey—LUSGS Map
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241 Onfario Avenue, Park City, Summit County, Utah
Intensive Level Survey—Biographical and Hisforical Research Materials

F.J. McLaughlin Dies
At Home Of Daughter

last Saturday mornlng, Frank J, um|
laughtin dipa st the home of jils daugh-
ter, Mrw, Bep J, Kuboan, Brea, Colifornia,
ol tnuses Ineident to pge, Funeral ser-

RH[ Wero conducted Tuesday In Bt
I“H Cotholle c¢hurch, Fulierton, Call-
Orala, with Interpment at the. Holy

Fulthre cemetery,

Mr, MtLaughlin was born in Newark,
Fari!" January 28, 1881, and come to
vors Cily a8 & young man, whers he
cha ®d In the Henry Ilrahman mers
hutnuha Elcre, und leter cperated a
h fal merchandlse store of il OWh.
'W!*;!m_n ﬁ: Bumnily coupty treasurer

ims and reied the old

“f-‘mﬁw theatra, cpe
Went to Ely, Nevada, In 1907, whete
at Wotked for the Camption Commercial
rﬂ:r‘:. Blurning to Park Clty several
iater to manage the Weisti, Driscoil

Ha l;t ary gooda department alore.
Lo, *1% Welsh, Driscull & Buck to be-
Buach, foMimaster, Jie moved to Long
ror In 1935, whers he operated a
shenyd Blofe before moving to Drea

FUL & yepp dga. :
way ‘:’-‘mb&r of the Catheolic church he
Of (ot Past grand eoupsclor in Knights
Fark cun:hun and past exaited yuler of

L, oWy Elka sodge, Na, 73,
Huf:fhnrl Inclhide 7 daughters, Mrs,
Tteid U and Mes, Tewsie Weeter, Bakers-

+ Callfornis, and 3 pramcehiidien.
ang hilnnl dled o chlidhood 1n this clty
¥ wile died I Ely In 1997,
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